

# Commission on People with Disabilities Wednesday, November 9, 2022 6:00 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

## Patricia Gallalee, Chair Karen Morgret, Vice-Chair

#### Join Zoom Meeting

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87699291604

**If you want to call into the meeting**, call 301-715-8592, use Meeting ID 876 9929 1604 followed by #. Those calling into the meeting can press \*6 to mute and unmute their phone.

If an attendee would like to speak during the meeting, they must use the "hand raise" function. If connecting via a smart phone, tablet or computer, please click on the Zoom link to be able to access all functions, including raising your hand. If you are calling by phone, press \*9 to raise your hand.

- 6:00 Call to Order & Approval of October 2022 Meeting Minutes Patricia Gallalee, Chair
- 6:10 Self Introductions and Sharing of Your Background (2 minute limit) A//
- 6:40 What are the priority goals of upcoming year other than those already developed below for the County Council, please read in advance. Develop a Plan to Achieve Outcomes and Outreach Efforts to the Public

Commission on People with Disabilities
Montgomery County Council
FY24 Operating Budget Priorities for October 26, 2022
Patricia Gallalee, Chair

## 1) Transportation

- We recommend that the County prioritize pedestrian safety over all other MCDOT projects (such as installation of bicycle lanes and floating bus stops). Sidewalk installation should be the top priority in all parts of the County with pedestrian safety being the prime emphasis of all MCDOT projects. This emphasis must begin especially on roads leading to schools where there is no bus service and must continue until all roads in the County are made safe for all pedestrians. This will require the County to take legislative action to make sidewalks mandatory preventing homeowners from blocking sidewalk installation. Pedestrians being forced to walk in the street amongst car traffic should not be tolerated.
- Given the high pedestrian severe injury and death figures from vehicular accidents published by MCDOT, sidewalk installation must be accomplished before efforts at opening up County roads to bicycles. By and far, the number of severe pedestrian injuries outstrip those of bicycle accident injuries in number and must be addressed immediately.
- Provide funds to conduct the nationally recognized "Passenger Assistance Safety and Sensitivity" certification training to Montgomery County drivers of taxicabs and wheelchair accessible vehicles.
- Provide gap-filling transportation services to older adults and residents with disabilities to prevent missed medical and other vital appointments. (\$120,000)

2) County to Establish DD Advisory Council to the County Executive and County Council The Montgomery County Commission on People with Disabilities has voted to respectfully request the establishment of a County Developmental Disability (DD) Advisory Council independent of the Commission on People with Disabilities given the estimated over 40,000 persons of all ages who have a developmental disability living in our County. Of note, this includes addressing the racial equity and social issues surrounding the increase in the number of students by race who have a disability and are enrolled in Montgomery County Public Schools (MCPS) special education. The County needs to ensure that there is a plan for engaging all families to ensure a positive transition to adult services. Of the 20.585 number of students in 2020 who were in MCPS special education, there was the following increases: Hispanic enrollment increased by 36.9%, African American by 26.5%, Asian by 7.9%, White students by 24.9% and for students who reported two or more races an increase of 4.5%. In the fall of 2020, total enrollment of students in MCPS was 160,561. The concerns and barriers faced by the entire DD population and their loved ones and caregivers overlap local and Statewide consideration and are complex. A dedicated, independent Advisory Council is needed to better educate and advise the County Government and allow better coordination at the State level. The State DDA has made ever growing changes to the waivers and services they provide; however, there are still significant gaps in services for those in the DD population with complex medical, behavioral, and mental health needs. This Council could also work to address the high unemployment rates of this population. The advisory group enabling legislation should give this Council the authority to advise the State Developmental Disability Administration and other State agencies as appropriate. The legislation should also include a full- time staff person to support the work of this group and include the number of meetings required to be held per year.

# 3) Support for Programs Serving People with Developmental Disabilities

The Commission supports the funding of the Developmental Disability Supplement. There needs to be increased support for more services for transitioning youth, mental and behavioral health services for younger children and teens with disabilities including co-occurring disabilities. The County needs to ask DDA to provide increased education regarding self-directed services by the Coordinators of Community Services agencies.

# 4) Support for Increased Access to Health and Mental health Care

The County should plan and conduct a Telecare/Telehealth demonstration project to improve access to healthcare and support services for older adults (\$250,000). Increase funding for mental health outreach for older adults (Senior Outreach Team) and people with disabilities to eliminate the waiting list for services and assist people to access proper referrals and care.

- 5) Early Intervention Screening Program for Children ages 0-3
  - Early diagnosis and treatment of Autism Spectrum Disorders (ASD) in childhood has been shown to significantly decrease the lifelong severity of disabling deficits caused by this disorder in up to half of children treated. Availability of tools needed to screen and treat ASD in infants is most urgently needed especially in socioeconomically disadvantaged populations in the County. We request the continued funding that was approved last May to monitored in its implementation for early intervention screening initiative for this year's budget of \$121,325 (\$621,148 over five years).
- 6) Establish a County Interagency Board for Employment of People with Disabilities and Designate Manager to Oversee Employment Programs and Outcomes for Contractors People with disabilities face disproportionate barriers to employment. There is a need to coordinate/oversee the outcomes for all County funded employment programs under an interagency committee and County staff person with overall goals and results monitoring. We recommend that each County funded organization have the goal to have 3-5 performance

measures related to outcomes for each contract, along with annual budget amount, so that better, more coordinated decisions can be made in the budgeting and contracting process for the employment of people with disabilities. Currently, there is a County special assistant that oversees Worksource Montgomery but does not oversee all employment contractors/agencies serving people with disabilities. The County spends over a million dollars per year to employ people with disabilities through AP 1-10 contracts in departments such as corrections and libraries. We recommend oversight of funding used for the purpose of employment for all populations.

7) Fund a Shelter for Riley's Lock for Protection near Accessible Canoe/Kayak Launch
The Commission applauds Montgomery Parks for the installation of the accessible launch for
kayakers/canoers and other users at Riley's Lock (Seneca Landing Special Park). It is heavily
used daily by the general public but is especially benefits people with disabilities (including
severely disabled Veterans who were hospitalized at Walter Reed) for access to Seneca Creek
and the Potomac River. It used to take an hour to get in the water for some and now about 1
minute. We recommend the County Council provide needed funding through the Parks CIP for
the design and construction of a shelter for the picnic area for all but especially for people who
have significant disabilities and who have temperature regulation issues to be safer and more
comfortable while using and enjoying the park.

#### 7:10 Chair and Vice-Chair Update

- 7:15 Updates New information
- 7:25 Community Speaks Public invited to make comments, 2 minute limit, time permitting. For profit companies who want to speak should contact the Commission in advance. Public participants generally are not invited to speak during presentations and time is set aside at the end of the meeting to allow the public to speak. This policy will be strictly enforced moving forward.

## 7:30 Adjourn

**ADA Reasonable Accommodations:** Sign language interpreter services and other auxiliary aids or services will be provided upon request with as much advance notice as possible, preferably at least five (5) full business days before the meeting. To request any reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting, please contact Carly Clem in advance at <a href="mailto:carly.clem@montgomerycountymd.gov">carly.clem@montgomerycountymd.gov</a> or call 202-853-1109. In all situations, a good faith effort will be made to provide accommodations. For any additional questions or concerns, please contact Betsy Luecking, Community Outreach Manager at <a href="mailto:betsy.luecking@montgomerycountymd.gov">betsy.luecking@montgomerycountymd.gov</a> or please call 240-418-4865, MD Relay 711.